ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COWWERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 3, 2003
3:15 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Bob Lynn, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Carl Gatto
Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative David CGuttenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 66

"An Act relating to certain persons who buy and sell secondhand
articles, to certain persons who I|end noney on secondhand
articles, and to certain persons who seek or receive |oans on
secondhand articles.”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 66

SHORT TI TLE: PAWNBROKERS/ SECONDHAND DEALERS
SPONSOR( S) :  REPRESENTATI VE( S) SAMUELS

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Acti on

01/ 27/ 03 0076 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 27/ 03 0076 (H L&C, FIN

01/ 27/ 03 0076 (H) REFERRED TO LABOR & COMVERCE

01/ 29/ 03 0089 (H COSPONSOR( S) : MCGUI RE

01/31/03 0108 (H COSPONSOR( S) :  HEI NZE

02/ 03/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE RALPH SAMUELS

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- February 3, 2003



Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor of HB 66, introduced his bill
and answered questions about it.

ART GRI SWOLD

Delta Junction, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Asked questions about how HB 66 would
affect his future secondhand busi ness.

MARK MEW Deputy Chi ef

Adm ni stration

Anchor age Pol i ce Depart nent

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in favor of HB 66 and described the
Anchorage Police Departnent's work wi th pawnshop reporting under
a nuni ci pal ordi nance.

LAURA ACHEE, Staff

to Representative Ral ph Sanuel s

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about the m sdeneanor
changes in HB 66.

MATT LEVEQUE, Li eutenant

Di vision of Al aska State Troopers

Department of Public Safety

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered the departnent's conceptual support
for HB 66 but raised concerns about whether +the proposed
Internet reporting will nesh with the Alaska State Troopers'
conmput er system

JERRY CLEWORTH, Owner

Al aska Rare Coins

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified against HB 66 on behalf of seven
retail businesses in downtown Fairbanks; he protested that a 30-
or 45-day hold is prohibitive and the reporting requirenments are
absurd.

JOHN SHACKLEY, Omner

Rocket Sur pl us
Fai r banks, Al aska

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- February 3, 2003



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As owner of a mlitary surplus store, spoke
in opposition to HB 66; he raised questions about how to handle
the docunentation on the purchase and resale of large lots of
mlitary uniforns and cl ot hing.

BI LL HOYT, Owner

Wasi | | a Pawn Shop

Wasi |l | a, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Questioned the required paynents to
pawnshop custoners in HB 66.

CONRAD HOLLER, Owner

Rai nbow Pawn Shop

Wasilla, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in opposition to HB 66, noting that
the current |aw works and criticizing the 45-day hold peri od.

JOHN M NNI CK, Owner

A-1 Pawn Shop

Wasi |l | a, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Indicated he would neet with legislators in
Juneau to discuss his concerns about HB 66.

DEBORAH FI NK, Oaner

Cash Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in favor of state pawn |egislation
and volunteered to offer industry perspective on revisions to HB
66, including the types of itens and busi nesses that should be
exenpted; noted that under the Anchorage ordi nance, she already
files regular reports.

JEFF GREGG Detective

Theft Section

Anchor age Pol i ce Depart nent

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Described how the current Anchorage
ordi nance works, gave exanples of tracking stolen property, and
descri bed how stolen property is being sold out of Anchorage.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-5, SIDE A
Number 0040

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- February 3, 2003



CHAI R TOM ANDERSON cal | ed the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:15 p.m Present at the call to
order were Representatives Anderson, Lynn, Dahlstrom Gatto,
Crawford, and CGuttenberg; Representative Rokeberg arrived as the
nmeeting was in progress.

HB 66- PAWNBROKERS/ SECONDHAND DEALERS

Nunmber 0075

CHAI R ANDERSON announced the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 66, "An Act relating to certain persons who buy
and sell secondhand articles, to certain persons who |end noney
on secondhand articles, and to certain persons who seek or
recei ve | oans on secondhand articles."

Number 0075

REPRESENTATI VE RALPH SAMUELS, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor
of HB 66, explained that the purpose of this bill is to help
victinse recover nore of their stolen property in a tinely
fashi on. At present, pawnshops are required to log the nmake,
nodel, and serial nunber of the itens they buy and the nanme of
the seller. These logs must be nmade available to |aw
enforcement officers upon request. When the police receive a
report of stolen goods, they enter the key information into a
dat abase, including the facts of the crine. Represent ati ve
Samuel s stated that the process of matching the data coll ected
by pawnshops and the police system doesn't work very well. This
bill would require those two systens to automate and to start
tal king to each ot her.

Number 0275

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS expl ai ned that automation in real tine is
the key to tracking stolen goods. The goal of HB 66 is for a
pawnshop owner to enter the details of a proposed purchase in
the conputer and learn if an itemwas stolen while the seller is
still present in the store. The bill puts a 30-day hold on
itens that are pawned, giving |law enforcenent officials nore
time to enter the details into their databases. Wth real-tine
data exchange, the police would enter data about a burglary into
their database, and if there's a match with the pawnshops' data,
the police would get a hit for the itenms at a pawnshop, plus a
record of who pawned it. This bill also requires that pawnshops
becone licensed so their activities can be nonitored. The bil

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- February 3, 2003



is aimed at automating the |arge pawnshops rather than snall
oper ati ons.

Nunmber 0308

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS expl ai ned that HB 66 focuses on statew de
enforcenent rather than depending on local police to regulate
pawnshop activities. Many goods stolen in Anchorage are hocked
in surrounding comunities in order to avoid detection by the
Anchor age police. A software program devel oped by a Canadi an
software conpany, BW [Business Watch International], uses the
Internet to transmt the transactions between pawnshops and

local law enforcenent agencies. This software can sort
information by various fields, for exanple, by the nunber of
pawns. In one case, |law enforcenent officers noted a woman who

had pawned 450 itenms in one nonth; that information |led police
to her sons who had been comm tting burglaries.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS noted two exenptions in HB 66. One is
for used car dealers who already file reports with the Division
of Mdtor Vehicles, Departnent of Adm nistration, and the other
exenption is for commodities dealers. For exanple, commdity
deal ers are businesses that deal with gold bullion; they would
be put out of business if they had to hold gold for 30 days.

Nunmber 0536

ART CGRISWOLD, Delta Junction, described a theoretical business
that buys and sells secondhand nerchandi se. He asked if the
owner is required to report all purchases. He expressed concern
that a citizen with financial troubles who sells personal itens
to a pawnshop woul d be added to a police database.

Nunmber 0689

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS noted that a |egal opinion states that
this bill does not violate a person's right to privacy, which,
he admtted, is sonewhat different from M. Giswld s privacy
concern. He pointed out that pawnshops are already required by

state law to record all sales; HB 66 wuld upgrade that
recording process from manual to autonated. Representati ve
Samuels said he would consider anending his bill to exenpt

purchases from aucti oneers and ot her deal ers.

Nunber 0764

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- February 3, 2003



MR GRISWOLD, in response to Representative Rokeberg, explained
that he is describing a secondhand or junk store he plans to
open next year. He posed the problem of recording the purchase
of baby clothes from a Russi an-speaki ng woman who barely speaks
Engl i sh.

Nunmber 0889

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked Representative Sanuels about the
change in HB 66 on page 5, lines 11-13, which renobves the
details of m sdeneanor penalties but upgrades the offense to a
cl ass A m sdeneanor.

Number 0910

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS responded that including both the
m sdenmeanor and its penalties could cause conflicts in future
| aw when t hose penal ti es change.

Number 0950

MARK MEW  Deputy  Chief, Adm ni stration, Anchorage Police
Department (APD), Municipality of Anchorage, said that the
Anchorage Assenbly passed an ordinance simlar to this bil
about 20 years ago. He opined that it works well. Pawnshops
are required to report their purchases to the police departnent,
to hold their property for 30 days, and during that period of
time, the police try to match pawnshop data against the stolen
property information in their record managenent system When
the police find matches, they require the pawnshop to put the
property in question on hold.

MR. MEW expl ai ned that when he started work as a detective, the

departnent's system was mnanual . Now APD has progressed to a
point were nost pawnshops can deliver their data on a floppy
di sk, while other shops send it by e-mail. Departnment staff

must massage the data to bounce it off the departnent's record
managenent system He said the APD is getting better at this,
and as a result, thieves are selling stolen property outside the
Anchorage jurisdiction, on the Kenai Peninsula and in the
Mat anuska Val | ey. The Anchorage Police Departnment supports HB
66 because the lack of a statew de neasure hanpers its efforts
to recover stolen property. M. Mw said he thinks APD is
losing track of lots of stolen property because of this
i nefficiency.

Number 1021

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- February 3, 2003



MR MEW testified that HB 66 gives a break to pawnshops that

automate their reporting criteria. State |law already requires
that all sales be recorded. |If a pawnshop doesn't automate, the
owner can still deliver the data manually. But the owner nust

hold the property |onger because the police departnent nust
enter the data by hand.

MR. MEW explained that the conputer software proposed for use
under this statute is offered to pawnshops at no cost; the
stores only need access to the Internet. The software would
manage many pawnshop busi ness functions: maintaining inventory;
recording sales; showing the location of property on the store
shel ves; and printing reports. The software also collects the
information on the person doing the pawn and bounces it - either
by real tinme or once a day - off the police departnment's stol en
property files. The user can set up the program so that the
pawnshop, the police departnent, or both are notified when the
system nakes a hit on stolen goods. Statewi de, city police
departnents could recover each other's stolen property. These
software conpanies have tried to create a program that makes
recor dkeepi ng nore convenient than the way pawnshops do busi ness
now. M. Mew said he doesn't think this poses a big hardship on
the custonmer or the pawnshop owner. He noted that there is a
new pilot project in Juneau and Anchorage whereby pawnshops are
voluntarily trying this software. He said he wants pawnshops to
get used to an automated database so they can reduce their hold
ti me under HB 66.

Number 1232
MR. MEW addressed the issue of custoner privacy. I n Anchor age,

where the police «collect thousands of pawn transactions,
officers don't have tinme to wonder who's fallen on hard tines.

MR MEW said state law already requires all secondhand and
pawnshop dealers to record their transactions, with the two
exceptions. However, APD isn't enforcing conpliance by the

secondhand shops because it doesn't have enough detectives to do
So. He explained that in Anchorage, the secondhand stores have
gotten thensel ves renoved from the rmunicipal ordinance, but they
are still required to keep a permanent record of their
pur chases.

Nunber 1331

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- February 3, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked about Section 6 of the bill, page 5,
lines 8-13, which adds reference to a class A m sdeneanor but
del etes the details of the fine and jail sentence.

MR MEW replied that wunder existing law, if a person pawns
stolen property knowngly, either as a fence or a broker, the
person will be charged with an of fense based on the value of the
property. A person can be found guilty of a theft by disposing
of stolen property, even if the underlying burglary or robbery
cannot be proven. This new | anguage penalizes pawnshop owners
who fail to report their purchases.

Number 1400

LAURA ACHEE, Staff to Representative Ral ph Samuels, Al aska State
Legislature, explained that a class A msdeneanor is a stiffer
penalty than what is currently in statue. She expl ai ned that
this section of existing law is antiquated; bills no |onger
detail specific penalties, but rather, +they reference the
crimnal statutes where the penalties are outlined. Law
enforcenment officers told her that a class A m sdeneanor is nore
appropriate than the existing, nore | enient penalties.

Nunmber 1477

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG commented that a class A m sdeneanor is
puni shable by up to one year in jail and $5,000 in fines, so
this is an enornous increase in penalty. The original |aw may
date back to 1949 when the generic term m sdeneanor was in use
and before it was classified into A, B, and C He opined that
the fine being renmoved in HB 66 is in the class C or |east
serious range. This bill uses the term "reckless", which is a
hi gher standard than a nere failure to report. " Reckl ess"
behavi or woul d have to be blatant to be successfully prosecuted.

Nunmber 1546

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked M. Mew if other states require
pawnshops to report sales and to be |icensed. She al so asked
about the <cost of the Ilicensing and whether it has been
successful . She questioned whether the only cost to pawnshop
owners is access to the Internet.

MR MEW replied that nost cities and states across the country
requi re pawnshops to report their purchases, and nost police
departnents have detectives working a pawn detail. He said the
extent to which each jurisdiction uses conputer technology

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- February 3, 2003



varies w dely. This particular software is free to |aw
enforcenment agencies and free to the pawnshops and secondhand
stores, but the customer pays a $.50 or $1 surcharge, so it's
the custonmer who pays for the system But there are a variety

of nodels. Some software conpanies sell the product to the
police departnent, which makes it free to the pawnshop or
charges the pawnshop. Some places, |ike Anchorage, are not

aut omat ed, and the pawnshops give the police the information on
a disk and the police absorb the cost of massaging the data

This bill doesn't |lock the pawnbrokers into accepting anybody's
particular solution. Internet access is the only thing required
for the pilot project in Anchorage and Juneau. The bill doesn't

require the pawnshops to autonate - only to report to the police
depart nment.

Nunmber 1682

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked about the | anguage on page 3, line
28, and whether the requirenent for governnent identification

should include the word "photographic". He also asked how
pawnshops record those itenms whose serial nunbers have been
renoved. In his experience, sone ironworker contractors retool

their jobs by buying tools from pawnshops; many tines the tools'
serial nunmbers have been defaced.

Nunber 1736

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS answered that if the serial nunber is
mssing from an item the pawnshop records other identifying
details.

Nunber 1749

MR. MEW added that pawnshops often deal wth nonserialized
property and with itenms mssing their serial nunbers. A mssing
serial nunmber is a hallmark that the property has been stolen,
and that should raise the pawnbroker's suspicions. Renoving a
serial nunber froma firearmis a crine, but it's not a crine to
renove it from a Wal kman [a pocket-sized cassette player]. | f
t he pawnshop owners can't enter a serial nunber, they can stil
enter the make, nodel, style, and size. The APD can still do
hits with that informtion. This other identifying information
is still a powerful tool, and allows the Anchorage Police
Department to narrow a field of thousands of itens down to a few
that they then look at in pawnshops. He said they often do
prepare court cases w thout serial nunbers.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- February 3, 2003



Nunber 1819

MR MEW in response to a question from Representative Crawford,
said he favors making it illegal to trade goods that are m ssing
their serial nunbers.

MR. MEW responded to a question from Representative Rokeberg
about BW [Business Watch International], the software conpany
in partnership wth the Canadian governnent and based in
Saskat chewan. The conpany approached the pawnshops, gave them a
software presentation, and asked if they'd like to try it out.
BW is paying the cost. Pawnshops don't have to charge the
clients a fee, nor do they have to pay a fee to the police
depart nment. M. Mew said that BW probably hopes to capitalize
on the market if the statute passes. But, he added, the bill
doesn't dictate which software to use.

Nunber 1998

MR. MEW answered Representative Rokeberg's query about the
exenptions in Anchorage's nunicipal ordinance. He said only
secondhand stores are exenpted in Anchorage, but the original
ordinance required all pawnshops and secondhand stores to
report. Anchorage doesn't require used car dealers to report

their sal es because they already report to DW.
Nunmber 2022

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG protested the selective enforcenent of
state law under which pawnshops nust report but used car
deal ers, Sal vation  Arny, Goodw | |, antique brokers, and
secondhand deal ers are ignored.

Nunber 2037

MR. MEW explained that stores |like Goodwi Il are exenpt because
they do not pay for the nerchandise they sell. Nei ther HB 66
nor the city ordinance requires stores like Salvation Arny to
report; only the stores that purchase property have to report.
He said it is true that the Anchorage Police Departnent
selectively enforces the nunicipal ordinance, and the departnent
isn't always happy about the situation but the departnment is
followng the direction given by several adm nistrations. M.
Mew said he believes that by encouraging pawnshops and
secondhand stores to use streamined technol ogy, his departnent
could handle nobre groups required to report under state |aw
Wi t hout increasing staff.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- February 3, 2003



MR. MEW answered Representative Rokeberg's question about how
secondhand deal ers gai ned exenption under Anchorage's nunicipa

or di nance. When the ordinance was revised, no one in the APD
realized there already was a state law requiring secondhand
stores to maintain records. Neither the state nor the
municipality is nonitoring this information from secondhand
st ores. This bill, coupled with the right technol ogy, m ght
change that, he said.

Nunmber 2168

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that Anchorage is the |argest |aw
enforcenment agency in the state. He asked how nmany staff
i nvestigate property crinmes and foll ow up with pawnbrokers.

MR. MEW answered that three or four detectives and two clerks
work full-time wth pawnshops and on general theft cases.
Anot her four detectives have occasional business with the pawn
system

Number 2245

MATT LEVEQUE, Lieutenant, D vision of Al aska State Troopers,
Department of Public Safety, testified that the departnent
conceptual ly backs HB 66. He said the departnent supports any
action that gets property back into the hands of victins faster
and allows the state to prosecute those who have stolen the

property.

MR  LEVEQUE identified several issues of concern to the
Department of Public Safety. The bill repeals the requirenent
that the pawnshop record the sale of the goods, and he said he
suspects this is an oversight. Repealing this requirenent

renoves the opportunity for police to follow up on cases that
have passed the 30-day hold period. \When the property has been
subsequently sold, it can still be recovered fromthe good-faith
pur chaser. Hi s other concern is with how the departnent would
upload information to this Internet system He said it is
unknown whet her APSIN [ Al aska Public Safety Information NetworKk]
woul d be conpatible with whatever software is used. Also, if
pawnbr okers and secondhand stores provide their reports on disk
or on the serialized three-part forms, the departnent would need
staff to input the data and make it usabl e.

Nunber 2319

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- February 3, 2003



MR, LEVEQUE, in answer to Representative Rokeberg's question
said that if the troopers received a disk today, they could not
match the information wth the troopers' current system of
tracki ng pawnshops. He wunderstands that the vendor would
provi de the software to police agencies at no cost, but the cost
of the system woul d be borne by the pawnshop custoner.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG described this cost to the pawnshop
custoner as a private fiscal note.

TAPE 03-5, SIDE B

Nunber 2371

JERRY CLEWORTH, Owmner, Alaska Rare Coins, identified hinself as
Fai r banks businessman and a city council nenber. He said he
represents a group of downtown businesses that are strongly
opposed to HB 66. These busi nesses are: Al askan Phot ogr aphi c

Repair Service, Gold Dust Antiques, Alaska Gold 'N Cens,
Al askan Gold Rush Jewelry, Caribou Loan, TCR Ivory, Arctic
Traveler's Gft Shop, and New Horizons Gllery. M. Ceworth
said the bill would inpact every business that buys secondhand
goods, basically every retail business in downtown Fairbanks.
None of these businesses were aware of an existing |aw that
requires that they record their purchases.

MR. CLEWORTH said that wthout definitions, he has to assune
that any previously owned item nust be |isted, whether purchased
from an estate sale, an auction, or a personal collection. M.
Clewrth asked if he would have to list every item in a
collection of 1,000 coins. "I don't have the tine," he said

and he called the requirenment absurd. He described the hol ding
period of 45 days as outrageous, because many small busi nesses
operate on limted capital and small margins. He explai ned that
his business deals in gold and silver, but he's not sure if he
qualifies as a commodities broker under HB 66. For exanple, if
soneone sells him 100 ounces of a precious netal at today's spot
price and he sits on the purchase for 45 days, he'd certainly go
broke. He asked if the bill applies to itenms such as gold coins
that aren't traded on the comobdities market but whose prices
fluctuate vastly fromday to day.

Number 2200
MR. CLEWORTH al so asked how the bill affects other secondhand
goods purchased at garage sales, over the Internet, at church

bazaars, and at flea markets. He pointed out that all the
testi mony today has involved pawnshops. |If the problem has been

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- February 3, 2003



pawnshops buying stolen goods, he suggested then working wth
that industry and getting it autonated. M. Cewrth testified
that in his 23 years of business, he had only one incident of
stol en goods, and it involved nenbers of the sane famly.

CHAI R ANDERSON told the witnesses that the conmttee is taking
testinony today but the bill wll be held over while the
sponsor, Representative Sanuels, continues work on it.

Number 2165
MR, CLEWORTH, in response to Representative Rokeberg's question,

replied that the 30- and 45-day holding periods and the
reporting requirenents in HB 66 are troubl esone. He physically

cannot conply with the reporting requirenents of the bill unless
he uses a generic listing of "a coin collection purchased from
Joe Blow." If he ties up $50,000 or $100,000 for 45 days, he

woul d have to get a | oan
Nunber 2076

JOHN SHACKLEY, Omner, [Rocket Surplus], a mlitary surplus
store, clarified earlier testinony, saying that Value Village is
a profit-making business that purchases nerchandi se. He
testified that the 15-day break on the required hold tine is not
much of an incentive to automate. If he collects the data
manual ly, his custonmers wouldn't have to pay the software
surcharge. So only a few pawnshops would be paying for it. He
predicted that the data collection system will work only if
every police agency in Al aska has the sane systemand it's given
to them at no charge. Those pawnshops that automate would end
up carrying the cost of the system

Nunber 2020

MR. SHACKLEY protested that asking any retail store to hold its
nmer chandi se for over 30 or 45 days is ridiculous. Busi nesses
work on a 30-day net; his vendors give him 30 days to sell the
mer chandi se and pay them He asked: If he buys an item at a
yard sale or an auction, does he insist the seller fill out a
forn? How does a nerchant distinguish one pair of bunny boots
from another? The bill requires that the seller have proof of
owner shi p. If a man wal ks into his shop to sell hima mlitary
uniform what are the identifying marks and what proof can the
man show of ownership? He said this bill poses many problens,
and he said he definitely opposes HB 66.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- February 3, 2003



Nunmber 1938

MR.  SHACKLEY, answering Representative Guttenberg' s question,
said that very little of his nerchandi se has serial nunbers or
uni que identifying marks.

MR. SHACKLEY responded to Representative Rokeberg's question
about whether he buys nerchandi se, such as nmilitary surplus, in
lots. He replied that he buys from DRMXs [ Defense Reutilization
and Marketing Ofices], from big vendors in the Lower 48, and
from people who buy from DRM>s. He explained that he buys sone
itens in lots of 100 or 200.

Number 1900

Bl LL HOYT, Wasilla Pawn Shop, questioned the neaning of current
law on page 5, lines 24-27, which deals with reselling pawned
itens and payi ng the previous owner.

Nunber 1821

CONRAD HOLLER, Rai nbow Pawn Shop, asked how he would report the
purchase of a large toolbox of 1,600 wenches with no serial
nunbers.

Nunmber 1786
JOHN MNNICK, A-1 Pawn, said he is traveling to Juneau on

Sunday, February 9, and hopes to talk to legislators about
suggest ed changes to HB 66.

Nunber 1756

MR, HOLLER, Rai nbow Pawn Shop, asked whet her sports shops, which
take guns in trade, will be required to hold them for 45 days
and report these transactions under HB 66. |If someone places an

item with him on consignnment, does he have to hold it for 45
days? If nerchants have to keep an item for 45 days, they wll
have to reduce the anobunt they pay for an item Sonme of these
custoners are legitinmate; they don't have any noney, they're
down and out, and they need what they can get. M. Holler noted
that the state law and the Anchorage ordi nance are not broken
and don't need fi xing.

Nunber 1645

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- February 3, 2003



DEBORAH FI NK, Omner, Cash Al aska, Anchorage, testified that she
has operated her business since 1989, and her four stores
conprise the |argest pawn business in the state. She said she
supports state legislation to retrieve stolen goods. She has
lived under the Anchorage pawnshop code for sone tine and is
used to the tinme and detail required. She said this legislation
is an opportunity for the industry and the public to address
this issue. She enphasized that she would like to be involved
in the dialogue on HB 66 and was glad to hear the commttee
won't be nmoving the bill today. She conpl ai ned about the pawn
i ndustry's bad inage. O the $4 million she paid out in |oans
and purchases in 2002, the average anount was $79. Her conpany
made 54, 751 sales and |oans for the year. O all the noney paid
out, only $2,000 in nerchandise was confiscated by a |aw

enforcenment  agency. Anot her  $15,000 in merchandise was
returned, at her own expense, to the people who clainmed the
itens as their property. This $17,000 in stolen property

anounted to one-third of one percent of her total business.
Number 1540

M5. FINK expl ai ned that pawnshops provide fast noney. They fill
a niche, the $79 loan, a service in which banks and credit
unions have no interest. Approxi mately 70 percent of her
custoners reclaimtheir itens; they come in over and over again,;
and the vast majority of her custoners are honest people. She
said her conpany has worked well with APD for many years. It's
reasonabl e for anyone who deals in used goods to be subject to
state regul ati on because these businesses are going to get sone
st ol en goods.

M5. FINK said she supports this legislation in general and said
she thinks she could live with HB 66 with a few m nor changes.
She said it is simlar to what she already does.

Number 1413

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked Ms. Fink where she thinks the stolen
goods are going if not to the pawnshops.

M5. FINK, answering Representative Gatto's question, said she
heard several years ago from the Anchorage Police Departnent
that that only 3 percent of stolen itens were ever recovered

nostly from pawnshops. Police working the pawn detail nore
recently indicated that sone stolen itenms were going into
per manent garage sales, that stolen jewelry was being placed in

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- February 3, 2003



jewel ry stores, and that npbst guns were being sold on the street
or in secondhand stores.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked Ms. Fink to explain her business's
$79 average transaction.

M5. FINK replied that the $79 [an average for |oans and
purchases] is the purchase anount, the anmount given to the
cust oner. The maxi mum purchase is $500, but she said the bulk
of her | oans were under $100.

Nunber 1292

M5. FINK replied to a series of questions from Representative
Rokeberg. She explained that the $500 pawn linmt is part of the
Al aska Small Loan Act [AS 06.20.330(b)]. She said it's very
| ow, even though it was raised from $200 five or six years ago.
She said that when people bring in sonmething worth a |ot of
noney, she can't give them a fair deal. She' d support raising
the $500 limt.

M5. FINK said she doesn't think the selective enforcement on
pawnshops is fair, but if the primary objective is recovering
stol en goods, fairness isn't so nuch the question. She said the
guestion is what is the reasonable thing to do to recover stolen
goods in the secondhand industry. She added that nost people in
the pawn industry don't think that furniture or clothing ought
to be reported. Reporting should be required for any serial-
nunbered itens, for higher-end jewelry, and for weapons. She
said she is very synpathetic to the people who have testified
t oday.

Nunber 1154

M5. FINK said that if there were a higher loan |imt, nost
jewelry would continue to go to jewelry stores on consignnent,
where there's no up-front noney paid to the seller. She said

her custoners would |like a higher pawmn |imt because she could
give thema better value for expensive itens.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG invited Ms. Fink and other speakers to
hel p the sponsor of HB 66 determine what itens are appropriate
to exenpt fromthe law. He said legislators don't want to force
people into reporting inappropriate itenms, such as baby clothes.
He said that people won't abide by bad | aws.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- February 3, 2003



MS. FINK responded that deciding what to report should be based
on what the police report as stolen.

Nunber 1021

JEFF  GREGG Det ecti ve, Thef t Section, Anchor age Pol i ce
Departnent, Municipality of Anchorage, described his work with
the pawn system He recounted specific exanples of stolen
property going outside Anchorage and several instances of
tracking down suspects and stolen property through the pawn
system M. Gegg surm sed that Anchorage secondhand stores may
have consi derable stolen goods, but their owners do not realize
it because the itens are not being checked against any
dat abases.

Number 0827

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked M. Gegg how he deals wth
itens that don't have serial nunbers or other identifying marks,
such as bunny boots, children's clothing, and furniture. And he
asked how he profiles people who conmt crinmes with these itens.

MR. GREGG gave the exanple of a business owner reporting that an
enpl oyee had stolen certain tools. M. Gegg checked that nane
in the database to see if the individual had pawned any itens,
and found several itens the enployee had pawned. The detective
then visited the pawnshop, took photos of the itens, nade
contact with the victimof the crime, and got as many details as
possi bl e about the stolen itens.

MR. GREGG told Representative (Quttenberg that he's not
personally aware of any illegal activity at the many ongoing
garage and yard sales. He also said he was not famliar with
any studi es of stolen goods being transported out of state.

Number 0654

MR MEWtestified that yard sales are not a problemin marketing
stolen goods because those itens are sold as bargains. He
proposed that |aw enforcenent work with the secondhand industry
to come up with protocols for recording collections of itemns,
for exanple, a box of tools or a coin collection. The conpany
denonstrating the pawn software is developing a canera that wll
al l ow the pawnbroker to take digital photographs and attach them
to the record. Looking at the photos could help the police
deci de whether to further investigate those itens. He said this
is one exanple of a technol ogical solution.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- February 3, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS concluded his presentation, saying the
point is to return stolen goods to the victins, not nonitor
garage sal es. He indicated his wllingness to work with the
industry to alleviate some of their concerns.

Nunber 0477

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sunmari zed key issues raised in today's
testi nony. He said be believes people are not adhering to the
current statute because it is broken. He said there is
sel ective enforcenent because nmany of these businesses should be
exenpt fromthe law. There's an inportant interplay between the
Al aska Small Loan Act and the $500 |oan cap. The conpany
mar keting the software, BW, m ght have comments about the pil ot

project and sone useful national perspectives. Representati ve
Rokeberg added that it's inportant to understand the costs of
inplementing an automated data collection system If this

software isn't conpatible wth the Alaska State Troopers'
system HB 66 nmay have a big price tag for new hardware and
sof t war e.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG al so noted the problem of creating a
penalty for nonreporting by pawnbrokers. Not recording pawn
purchases was previously a class B or C msdeneanor, and this
bill turns failure to report into a class A msdeneanor, a
crimnal action. Representative Rokeberg said HB 66 is a
licensing procedure, and its penalties should be simlar to
those of other |icensed businesses regulated by the D vision of
Qccupational Licensing. He also noted that the bill adds the
term "recklessly" as a standard of proof. He volunteered to
work with the sponsor of HB 66 on these issues.

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that HB 66 wll be held for further
publ i c heari ng.

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
4:45 p. m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- February 3, 2003



